Seychelles Oncology Unit Patient Survey

Technical Handbook

Dr Johanna Rapanarilala Dr Sylvie Pool Dr Nyasha Manyeruke Dr Ernest Guevarra

15 April 2025

Table of contents

Pr	eface	4
I	Design	5
1	Survey design	6
	1.1 The research project	6
	1.1.1 Background and rationale	6
	1.1.2 Research objectives and questions	7
	1.1.3 Scope	8
	1.2 The patient survey	9
2	Questionnaire design and development	10
	2.1 Reference questionnaires	10
	2.1.1 Le Baromètre cancer	10
	2.1.2 Cancer Awareness Measure Plus	11
	2.1.3 Consumer Assessment of Healthcare Providers and Systems	11
	2.2 The Seychelles Oncology Unit Patient Survey questionnaire	12
	2.2.1 Demographics	12
	2.2.2 Patient journey to diagnosis and referral	13
	2.2.3 Communication and interaction	13
	2.2.4 Scheduling and access	13
	2.2.5 Comfort and environment	13
	2.2.6 Overall experience	13
3	Data management plan	14
4	Data analysis plan	15
11	Training	16
5	Participant selection	17
6	Informed consent	18
7	Paper-based data collection	19
8	Electronic data collection	20

	De	ploym	ent	21								
9	Deploying the survey instrument											
10	0 Data extraction, transformation, and loading pipeline											
11	Data	a analy	sis workflow	24								
Re	eferer	ices		25								
At	open	dices		26								
Α	Mot	oile dev	ice setup	26								
	A.1	Device	e layout	. 26								
		Butto	ns	. 27								
	A.2	Charg	ing the battery	. 27								
	A.3	Turnir	$ for the device on and off \ldots \ldots$. 28								
	A.4	Lockin	g and unlocking the device	. 28								
	A.5	Config	uring devices for data collection	. 29								
		A.5.1	Go to settings	. 29								
		A.5.2	Configure the Connections settings	. 31								
		A.5.3	Configure the Device settings	. 32								
		A.5.4	4. Configure the Controls settings	. 37								
		A.5.5	Configure the General settings	. 39								
В	Sett	ing up	ODK Collect for data collection	46								
		B.0.1	Open ODK Collect	. 46								
		B.0.2	Reset ODK Collect	. 48								
		B.0.3	Connect ODK Collect to the KoboToolbox server	. 49								
		B.0.4	Get blank forms	. 51								
		B.0.5	Filling blank forms	. 54								
Ind	dex			55								

Preface

This handbook is a guide on the design, development, training, and implementation of the **Seychelles Oncology Unit Patient Survey**. This handbook was first put together for the first iteration of the survey in 2025.

This is a pre-release version $(\mathbf{v0.0.0.9000})$ released on 15 April 2025.

Part I

Design

1 Survey design

The **Seychelles Oncology Unit Patient Survey** is a component process within a wider/broader research project that aims to improve the quality of care provided by the Oncology Unit through a landscape analysis of existing standards, key performance indicators (KPIs) and patient experiences.

In this section, we describe the background/rationale for the overall research project, its objectives, and the research questions it is addressing. We then outline which objective/s and research question/s this patient survey addresses and characterise how the survey design allows us to gain insight relevant to the objectives and research questions of the overall research project.

1.1 The research project

The research project is entitled Establishing Quality Indicators for Cancer Care: A Readiness Assessment of the Oncology Unit, Ministry of Health (MoH) Seychelles

1.1.1 Background and rationale

Cancer remains one of the leading causes of death in Seychelles, accounting for more than 17% of the country's annual mortality¹. This is a pattern consistently observed over the past decade¹.

According to the latest figures (2023) from the Seychelles National Cancer Registry (SNCR), 152 deaths were attributed to cancer (83 males and 69 females), with a total of 307 new cases. This marked an increase of over 50% since 2009^1 (non-age standardised). Nearly half of these cases are diagnosed at advanced stages (III and IV)².

These trends are projected to increase substantially in this post-COVID-19 period, due to disruptions in cancer-related services and changes in healthcare utilisation during the pandemic, coupled with rising and continued population exposure to known modifiable risk factors.

Even when adjusting for demographic shifts over time, cancer incidence trends remain significant in terms of an increase in absolute numbers of individuals needing systemic drug therapy (i.e. medication-based cancer treatment), year on year.

As the sole provider of systemic drug therapy nationally, the Oncology Unit, which functions as a Chemotherapy Day Unit, is facing significant capacity challenges in the face of this surge

in demand. This raises critical questions regarding potential compromises to standards of care, and their subsequent impact on treatment outcomes, survival and quality of life of patients being treated at the Oncology Unit. Addressing these questions requires an understanding of the status quo on the quality of care being delivered at the unit, including an examination of existing structures or frameworks for quality measurement.

In line with the MoH's agenda, as articulated in its National Health Strategic Plan (NHSP 2022-2026)³, to not only continue expanding access but also improve the quality of care provided, a Strategic Framework for Quality Management (SFQM 2024-2029) was developed, in partnership with World Health Organization (WHO). This framework aims to establish structures and mechanisms to facilitate the operationalisation, monitoring, and evaluation of quality improvement initiatives within the health sector⁴.

Key gaps identified during the development of the SFQM 2024-2029, include the lack of clearly defined standards, guidelines and quality indicators across clinical departments and units, as well as the notable absence of user/patient input in quality improvement initiatives⁴.

These gaps were flagged as priorities within the SFQM 2024-2029 requiring urgent attention and echoed recommendations from oncology-specific situational analyses (such as the 2019 IAEA imPACT review), that emphasise the need for standards and the strengthening of patient-centred care approaches across all levels of cancer care service delivery⁴.

Although the Oncology Unit follows international treatment protocols, namely that of the National Comprehensive Cancer Network (NCCN) and the European Society of Medical Oncology (ESMO) and collects data on various metrics; the degree to which standards and quality indicators are consistently set, monitored and actioned, is undetermined.

Moreover, attempts to address concerns around patient-centred care through a planned patient experience/satisfaction survey have been stymied by disruptions to the unit's operations during the pandemic in 2019/2020.

In response to these challenges, this project seeks to assess existing quality of care structures or frameworks within the Oncology Unit to serve as a crucial first step in understanding the gaps in quality measurement and improvement processes. Findings from this research will inform next steps - i.e. the development and implementation of actionable standards and quality indicators or KPIs that are both relevant and feasible within the resource constraints of Seychelles' health system.

This project also places a renewed focus on capturing patient views and experiences to address patient-centred care issues and integrate user feedback into future quality improvement initiatives within the Oncology Unit.

1.1.2 Research objectives and questions

The overall aim is of this research project is to improve the quality of care provided by the Oncology Unit through a landscape analysis of existing standards, KPIs and patient experiences. This will facilitate data-driven improvements that align with international best practices and the specific needs of the Seychelles population.

1.1.2.1 Specific objectives

Specific Objectives include:

- 1. To identify and describe gaps in existing standards and KPIs used in the Oncology Unit.
- 2. To compare current practices to international standards and best practices.
- 3. To investigate factors that contribute to positive or negative patient-reported experiences with services offered by the Oncology Unit.
- 4. To assess the overall satisfaction of patients receiving care in the Oncology Unit.
- 5. To determine if there are any correlations between objective and subjective measures of quality.

1.1.2.2 Research questions

These objectives are addressed by the following research questions:

Research question 1: What standards and specific, measurable KPIs exist in the Oncology unit to monitor and improve quality of care?

Research question 2: To what extent are globally recognised standards and KPIs currently being implemented, measured, or adapted in the Oncology Unit and how do current practices compare to international benchmarks and best practices?

Research question 3: What factors contribute to positive or negative patient-reported experiences within the Oncology Unit?

1.1.3 Scope

This project will focus on evaluating quality of care structures within the Oncology Unit only. Standards and KPIs will be reviewed within the six domains of quality as defined by the Institute of Medicine $(IOM)^5$ and adopted by MoH (through the SFQM 2024-2029 framework) around: *safety*, *effectiveness*, *patient-centredness*, *timeliness*, *efficiency*, and *equity*.

This project will not directly address cancer-site specific KPIs but rather the overall performance of the oncology department as a unit. The scope encompasses adult oncology services, with paediatric oncology excluded from this assessment.

This research is intended to generate evidence to support the Oncology team, relevant stakeholders and internal committees (e.g. committee leading on the NCCP development) in their decision-making processes in regard to setting appropriate standards, defining KPIs and designing effective quality improvement initiatives in Oncology. It is not within the scope of this project to make definitive recommendations or decisions regarding specific KPIs and standards, and by extension the allocation of resources or prioritisation of strategies to establish these standards and KPIs. Those decisions require a holistic view of cancer services in Seychelles and must be considered within the context of overall non-communicable diseases (NCD) control strategies and resource allocation, which are the purview of higher-level committees and decision-making bodies within MoH.

1.2 The patient survey

2 Questionnaire design and development

The key approach to questionnaire design and development for this project was to build on existing tried and tested oncology patient satisfaction and/or experience survey instruments utilised in other countries and in various contexts to ensure content validity (see Section 2.1 for a description of these questionnaires). Questions from these existing instruments were either extracted verbatim or were modified to align with the local context. Localisations included adjustments to terminology to match what is used locally and the addition of response options relevant to the Seychelles local setting and specific cultural context of the population. The questionnaire design was further guided by the six domains of healthcare quality (see Note 1) put forth by the Institute of Medicine or IOM^5 .

i Note 1: IOM six domains of healthcare quality

Safe: Avoiding harm to patients from the care that is intended to help them. **Effective**: Providing services based on scientific knowledge to all who could benefit and refraining from providing services to those not likely to benefit (avoiding underuse and misuse, respectively).

Patient-centered: Providing care that is respectful of and responsive to individual patient preferences, needs, and values and ensuring that patient values guide all clinical decisions.

Timely: Reducing waits and sometimes harmful delays for both those who receive and those who give care.

Efficient: Avoiding waste, including waste of equipment, supplies, ideas, and energy. **Equitable**: Providing care that does not vary in quality because of personal characteristics such as geographic location and socioeconomic status.

2.1 Reference questionnaires

Following are the reference questionnaires used by the study team to develop the Seychelles Oncology Unit Patient Survey.

2.1.1 Le Baromètre cancer

The *Le Baromètre cancer* is a nationwide survey carried out in France every five years. Now on its fourth edition which collected data collected in 2021 from nearly 5000 individuals aged 15 to 85, the survey offers insight into how the French population perceives and responds to cancer which are then used in the for public health monitoring and research.

The survey is run by Santé publique France in collaboration with the Institut National du Cancer. Given the survey's every five years frequency, it is able to provide data that can be analysed to track trends over time in how people perceive cancer, their awareness of prevention methods, and how they engage with screening programs.

For the purpose of the survey questionnaire development for this study, the Baromètre cancer questionnaire for 2015 was used⁶.

2.1.2 Cancer Awareness Measure Plus

The *Cancer Awareness Measure Plus* (CAM+) is a recurring survey designed to collect nationally representative data on public attitudes, awareness, and behaviours in the United Kingdom regarding key areas such as early diagnosis, screening, and cancer prevention. The findings from CAM+ are utilised by Cancer Research UK to guide strategic decisionmaking, operational planning, communication efforts, and the development of behavioural interventions, as well as to inform evidence-based policy development.

The original *Cancer Awareness Measure (CAM)* survey was developed and validated between 2007 and 2008 through a collaboration between Cancer Research UK, University College London, King's College London, and the University of Oxford, in response to the absence of a validated tool for assessing public awareness of cancer. In addition to the general CAM, a series of cancer-specific CAMs were also developed. These instruments were initially designed to be administered via face-to-face or telephone interviews.

Since 2008, Cancer Research UK has routinely collected CAM and CAM+ data. While the frequency of data collection has varied over time, biannual data collection was established in 2020, with a transition to annual data collection planned for the future.

Beginning in 2014, the survey has been continuously updated, modified, and expanded to reflect emerging evidence and changes in the external environment. These enhanced iterations are referred to as the *Cancer Awareness Measure Plus (CAM+)*, highlighting the inclusion of additional questions and substantial revisions to the original instrument. In 2019, the survey was further adapted to facilitate online data collection.

For the purpose of the survey questionnaire development for this study, the 2011 version of the toolkit for the original CAM developed in 2008^7 was used along with the 2019 version of the CAM+⁸.

2.1.3 Consumer Assessment of Healthcare Providers and Systems

The Consumer Assessment of Healthcare Providers and Systems (CAHPS®) is a long-term initiative by the Agency for Healthcare Research and Quality (AHRQ) aimed at improving understanding of patient experiences in healthcare. It supports research to develop valid and practical tools for assessing and reporting patient experiences, and for using these insights to enhance care quality. Over its more than 25-year history, CAHPS has produced standardized surveys widely used by healthcare providers and policymakers to evaluate and improve patient care across various settings.

Launched in 1995 to address inconsistent and limited data on patient perspectives, CAHPS initially focused on health plans. It has since expanded to cover a broader range of healthcare services. Now in its sixth phase (CAHPS VI, as of 2022), the program continues to evolve while maintaining its voluntary, research-focused nature.

For the purpose of the survey questionnaire development for this study, the CAHPS® Cancer Care Survey for drug therapy version was used⁹.

2.2 The Seychelles Oncology Unit Patient Survey questionnaire

The current development process has produced a 59-item survey instrument composed of 6 sections (see Note 2).

i Note 2: Survey instrument sections

Section 1: Demographics (10 questions)

Section 2: Patient journey to diagnosis and referral to Oncology Unit (9 questions)

Section 3: Communication and interacting with the Oncology Team (29 questions)

Section 4: Scheduling and access (6 questions)

Section 5: Comfort and evironment (3 questions)

Section 6: Overall experience (2 questions)

2.2.1 Demographics

The **Demographics** section collects patient charactertistics information on

- age;
- gender;
- location of residence;
- disability status;
- languages spoken;
- marital status;
- level of education;
- employment status;
- type of occupation/job; and,
- living arrangements.

Demographic information allows us to perform stratified analysis of patients' reported experience of cancer care potentially detecting inequities/disparities.

2.2.2 Patient journey to diagnosis and referral

The **Patient journey to diagnosis and referral to Oncology Unit** section elicits patients' experience before reaching the Oncology Unit with a focus on assessing their knowledge, attitudes, and practices/behaviours on help-seeking. In addition, this section draws information on how the general health service/system performs in getting the patient to a confirmed diagnosis and eventual referral.

2.2.3 Communication and interaction

The **Communication and interacting with the Oncology Team** section draws out the patients' experience of and satisfaction with their communiations and interactions with the Oncology Team once they have been referred to the unit with the aim of assessing the patient-centredness of care once referred to the Oncology Unit.

2.2.4 Scheduling and access

The **Scheduling and access** section obtains the patients' experience of and satisfaction with the scheduling and access to the Oncology Unit both in terms of routine and urgent care. This assesses the timeliness and responsiveness of care once referred to the Oncology Unit.

2.2.5 Comfort and environment

The **Comfort and environment** section asks patients of their satisfaction with the overall level of comfort and the various aspects of the physical space and amenities available at the Oncology Unit.

2.2.6 Overall experience

The final section on **Overall experience** elicits the patients' satisfaction with the overall experience of the services at the Oncology Unit.

3 Data management plan

4 Data analysis plan

Part II Training

5 Participant selection

6 Informed consent

7 Paper-based data collection

8 Electronic data collection

Part III

Deployment

9 Deploying the survey instrument

10 Data extraction, transformation, and loading pipeline

11 Data analysis workflow

References

- 1. Public Health Authority. Seychelles National Cancer Registry Report. (2023).
- 2. IAEA, IARC & WHO. *imPACT Review Mission Report Seychelles*. (2019).
- 3. Ministry of Health, Seychelles. National Health Strategic Plan 2022-2026. https://www.health.gov.sc/wp-content/uploads/2023/02/National-Health-Strategic-Plan-2022-2026-Full-Version.pdf (2022).
- 4. QoC Technical Working Group, HCA, Ministry of Health, Seychelles. Strategic Framework for Quality Management (2024 –2029): Closing the Gap. (2023).
- 5. Institute of Medicine (US) Committee on Quality of Health Care in America. Crossing the Quality Chasm: A New Health System for the 21st Century. (National Academies Press (US), Washington (DC), 2001).
- 6. Baromètre Cancer 2015. Questionnaire. (2018).
- 7. Cancer Research UK, University College London, Kings College London & University of Oxford. *Cancer Awareness Measure (CAM) Toolkit*. https://www.cancerresearchuk.org/sites/default/files/cam_2008_toolkit.pdf (2011).
- 8. The cancer awareness measure public lifestyle UK survey (CAM PLUS) questionnaire. (2019).
- 9. CAHPS Cancer Care Survey. https://www.ahrq.gov/cahps/surveys-guidance/ cancer/index.html (2020).

A Mobile device setup

Mobile devices such as mobile phones and tablets have become valuable tools in data collection. Various applications have been and are being developed specifically to harness the utility of mobile devices for collecting data. An understanding of how mobile devices work specifically those powered by Android operating system is therefore a requisite knowledge for anyone involved in a data collection campaign that utilises these devices for data collection. This tutorial gives a brief overview on how to get started with an Android device. We chose to focus on the use of tablet devices because we think that the smaller sized tablets (up to 7-inch) are a good mix of the mobility and handiness of a mobile phone and the wider screen size of a tablet which is good for fitting relatively dense question sets adequately. We also chose to focus on Samsung-branded because they are probably the most common brand of mobile devices available and we think most users have most likely had an experience using devices from this brand beforehand. We use the Samsung SM-T230 as the model device for instructional purposes.



A.1 Device layout

Figure A.1: Samsung SM-T230 device layout

Buttons

Power

- Press and hold to turn the device on or off.
- Press and hold for 8 seconds to reset the device if it has fatal errors or hangs-up, or freezes.
- Press to lock the device. The device goes into lock mode when the touch screen turns off.

Recent apps

• Tap to open the list of recent applications.

Home

- Press to return to the Home Screen.
- Press and hold to launch Google search.

Back

• Tap to return to the previous screen.

Volume

• Press to adjust the device volume.

A.2 Charging the battery

Before using the device for the first time or when the battery has been unused for extended periods, you must charge the battery.

Connect the USB cable to the USB power adaptor and then plug the end of the USB cable into the multipurpose jack.

- The device can be used while it is charging, but it may take longer to fully charge the battery.
- If the device receives an unstable power supply while charging, the touch screen may not function. If this happens, unplug the charger from the device.
- While charging, the device may heat up. This is normal and should not affect the device's lifespan or performance. If the battery gets hotter than usual, the charger may stop charging.



Figure A.2: Charging the device

After fully charging, disconnect the device from the charger.

Your device provides options that help you save the battery power. By customising these options and deactivating features in the background, you can use the device longer between charges:

- When you are not using the device, switch to sleep mode by pressing the Power button.
- Close unnecessary applications with the task manager.
- Deactivate the Bluetooth feature.
- Deactivate the WiFi feature.
- Deactivate auto-syncing of applications.
- Decrease the backlight time.
- Decrease the brightness of the display.

A.3 Turning the device on and off

When turning on the device for the first time, follow the on-screen instructions to setup your device.

Press and hold the Power button for a few seconds to turn on the device.

To turn off the device, press and hold the Power button, and then tap Power off.

A.4 Locking and unlocking the device

When not in use, lock the device to prevent unwanted operation. Pressing the Power button turns off the screen and puts the device into lock mode. The device automatically gets locked



Figure A.3: Turning off the device

if it is not used for a specific period.

The steps to unlocking the device depends on the lock screen settings of the mobile device. By default, the **swipe** method will unlock the screen. This is done by pressing the Power button or Home button when the touch screen is turned off, tapping anywhere on the screen, and then swiping on the touch screen in any direction. See Section A.5.3.4 to learn more about the other lock screen methods.

A.5 Configuring devices for data collection

It is important to configure mobile devices such as mobile phones or tablets that are going to be used for data collection. From the point of view of a **survey lead** or **survey manager**, it will be important that the devices are configured in such a way that:

- Prevents inappropriate use by enumerators;
- Conserves the battery power of the device; and,
- Maximises its use for data collection.

A.5.1 Go to settings

On your tablet device, tap on the *Settings* app (Figure A.4a).

You will then see the following on your tablet screen (Figure A.4b). There are four (4) tabs on top of the screen named **Connections**; **Device**; **Controls**; and **General**. These are the four settings categories that can be configured as needed.



Figure A.4: Android device settings

A.5.2 Configure the Connections settings

Under the **Connections** tab (Figure A.5), the following settings should be configured:

Connec Dev	rice Controls General										
	Scan Wi-Fi Direct Q										
Wi-Fi	Wi-Fi WI-FI NETWORKS										
Bluetooth	BTHub4-2W9K Connected BTWifi-with-FON Open										
Flight mode	BTWifi-X Secured										
	PLUSNET-Q3RTNC Secured (WPS Available)										
Location	BTHub3-Q93W Secured (WPS Available)										
9 3	BTHub5-2MWM Not in range										
More netwo	valid1 Not in range										
CONNECT AND S	valid2 Not in range										
Nearby dev	+ Add Wi-Fi network										

Figure A.5: Connections menu

- Wi-Fi (1) this should be set to OFF during the data collection process. When ON, the device keeps on scanning for Wi-Fi networks that are available
- Bluetooth (2) the Bluetooth should be set to OFF during the data collection process. When Bluetooth is ON, the device keeps on scanning for Bluetooth devices to connect to. This continuous scanning will drain the batter device very quickly.
- Location (3) this should be set to ON during the data collection process if you will be collecting GPS coordinates.
- Nearby devices (4) this should be set to OFF. This settings uses near-field communication (NFC) to communicate with other devices that are NFC-enabled. Just like Bluetooth, when turned ON, the device will keep on scanning to look for devices to connect to which will drain the battery device very quickly.

A.5.3 Configure the Device settings

Tap on the **Device** tab.

A.5.3.1 Sound and display settings

The first settings to configure will be the **Sound and Display** (Figure A.6).



Figure A.6: Sound settings

For **Sound (1)**, the most relevant settings to configure will be whether you would want to get sound-based feedback when you interact with the device such as touching the screen and making selections **(2)** and when you lock or unlock the device **(3)**. These settings are checked by default as most users prefer some form of feedback when they tap on the screen or when they lock or unlock the screen. Uncheck this option if you prefer not to have these sounds on. These settings have very little effect on the device battery life and is more a matter of preference.

A.5.3.2 Display settings

Next, tap on **Display** (1) settings under the **Device** tab settings (Figure A.7).



Figure A.7: Display settings

The following settings can be configured here:

- Brigthness (2) this should be configured as needed but ideally should be set to no more than middle level brightness. Make sure that screen brightness is not set to maximum at any point as this will drain the battery device very quickly.
- Screen timeout (3) this setting determine how long the screen stays on when device is not in use. This should be set to about 10 minutes of inactivity. This is just about enough time for enumerators to ask questions and get a response and then record on the device without the screen going OFF and then the device going on lock.
- Daydream (4) this is the screensaver for these devices. This should be turned OFF because when activated, a screen saver turns on when the device is inactive instead of the screen turning OFF and getting locked. This causes battery device drainage.

• **Display batter percentage (5)** - this should be checked. This will help enumerators to determine whether their devices have enough power or not.

A.5.3.3 Multi window settings

Next tap on Multi window (1) settings (Figure A.8). This should be unchecked (2). For the purposes of data collection, there is no use for the multi window functionality.



Figure A.8: Multi window settings

A.5.3.4 Lock screen settings

Next tap on the Lock screen (1) settings (Figure A.9). Under this setting, there are three main things we need to configure.

The **Owner information (2)** setting would be good to configure because this allows you to name the device you are setting up. This is especially important when you are managing



Figure A.9: Lock screen settings

multiple devices for data collection and you need to identify one device from the other so you know what device goes to which enumerator and other management task.

The Unlock effect (3) setting should also be configured to None. This setting ensures that unlocking of the device is quick and easy without unnecessary effects.

The **Screen Security** setting should be configured as this provides a layer of security on the mobile device that will enable only authorised users to access the contents of the mobile device and add/change settings of the mobile device. There are currently five options for screen security: **none**, **swipe (default)**, **pattern**, **PIN**, and **password**. It is recommended to set a screen lock method of either a pattern, PIN, or password. Figure A.10 shows an example of a screen lock pattern security for a mobile device.



Figure A.10: Screen lock pattern example

A.5.3.5 Font settings

Now, tap on **Font** setting (Figure A.11).



Figure A.11: Font settings

Here, there is one key setting to consider and that is the **Font size**. You should consider the best font size that would make the text of the device easier to read for enumerators. The device defaults to **Medium** which is generally a good font size to use. Change this font size if you think a bigger or smaller font would be necessary.

A.5.4 4. Configure the Controls settings

Now, tap on the **Controls** settings tab on top of the screen.

A.5.4.1 Language and input settings

The first setting to configure is the Language and input (1) settings (Figure A.12).

Connecti Devi	ce Controls General
	Q
VOICE AND INPU Language. MOTION CONTROL Palm moti Smart scre	Language and input Language (2) English (United Kingdom) (2) KEYBOARDS AND INPUT METH Default SwiftKey Keyboard - SwiftKey (3) SwiftKey Keyboard (3) Samsung keyboard (3) Samsung keyboard (3) SwiftKey Keyboard (3) Samsung keyboard (3) SwiftKey Keyboard (3) SwiftKey Keyboard (3) SwiftKey Keyboard (3) SwiftKey Keyboard (4) SwiftKey Keyboard
	MOUSE/TRACKPAD
	Pointer speed

Figure A.12: Language and input settings

The language used in the device can be configured to the language that is most appropriate for the data collection. When the **Language (2)** setting is set to a particular language, the device uses that language throughout the device. In this example, the device is set to **English (United Kingdom)**.

The next setting is **Keyboards and input methods**. By default, Samsung devices uses the Samsung keyboard. However, there are various keyboard applications now available that provide much better keyboard input than the default Samsung keyboard. We recommend the use of **SwiftKey keyboard** as the layout of the keyboard is much better than the Samsung keyboard which allows for much accurate text entry.

To be able to enable SwiftKey, you first need to download and install the SwiftKey application from the Google Play Store or sideload it using an APK file. Once installed, the SwiftKey keyboard option now becomes available in the **Keyboards and input methods** (4) settings. This keyboard option can now be checked. Checking this keyboard option includes SwiftKey keyboard as a keyboard choice for the user. To make it default, tap on the **Default** setting of the **Keyboards and input methods**, and then select SwiftKey as the default keyboard (3).

A.5.4.2 Palm motion settings

Now, set the Palm motion (1) setting (Figure A.13).

Turn off the setting for both **Capture screen (2)** and **Mute/Pause (3)** setting. This avoids enumerators unintentioally activating this gesture input which can confuse them on what to do next.

A.5.4.3 Smart screen settings

Now, set the Smart Screen (1) settings (Figure A.14).

You should uncheck the **Smart stay** (1) option. Whilst this setting is a clever functionality, this can drain the battery device much quicker because it utilises the front camera to determine whether the user is looking at the screen or not.

A.5.5 Configure the General settings

Next, tap on the **General** settings tab.



Figure A.13: Palm motion settings



Figure A.14: Smart screen settings



Figure A.15: Accounts settings

A.5.5.1 Accounts settings

The Accounts (1) setting is the first to configure (Figure A.15).

If you have already configured your device with a Google account, you should see under the **Accounts** section the Google icon (2). If not, this is the time to add your Google account. Click on **Add account** and then follow the instructions after that.

Other accounts can be added here. However, for purposes of data collection, there is no for these other accounts unless your data collection campaigns requires any other accounts setup in your device.

A.5.5.2 Date and time settings

Now, we should set the **Date and time** settings (Figure A.16).



Figure A.16: Date and time settings

It would be important to set the **Date and time** settings of the device appropriately. This is relevant to data collection because some forms that collects dates uses the date and time

of the device to determine what the current date and time is. If these settings are not set correctly, then the recorded date and time in the forms will also be incorrect.

A.5.5.3 Application manager settings

Next, tap on the **Application manager** (Figure A.17).



Figure A.17: Application manager settings

This setting allows you to disable or uninstall certain applications that is not really needed for your data collection. It is recommended that you disable or uninstall any applications installed on the device that will not be used by the enumerators for data collection. Doing so prevents unintended use of the device by the enumerators and ensures that the battery of the device is conserved and used only for data collection as much as possible.

It should be noted however that certain applications come pre-installed by the brand manufacturers. For some of these, they cannot be uninstalled or disabled as they have been hard set to stay on the device.

A.5.5.4 Power saving mode settings

Next, tap on Power saving mode (1) settings (Figure A.18).



Figure A.18: Power saving mode settings

The **CPU Performance (2)** option can be checked. Data collection doesn't require great CPU performance at all and definitely will not require maximum performance at any point. This will increase battery life of the device.

B Setting up ODK Collect for data collection

This section is for all five Samsung SM-T230 devices provided after they have all been setup with a Google account and ODK Collect v1.25 installed.

B.0.1 Open ODK Collect

Go to the ODK Collect application and then tap on it (Figure B.1a). The ODK Collect app menu will then be seen (Figure B.1b).



(a) ODK Collect app

(b) ODK Collect menu

Figure B.1: ODK Collect app

B.0.2 Reset ODK Collect

- 1. Go to Admin Settings of ODK Collect (Figure B.2a).
- 2. Select Reset application... (Figure B.2b) option.
- 3. Tick the boxes for (Figure B.2c):
- All settings (internal settings, saved settings)
- Saved forms (instances folder, instances database)
- Blank forms (forms folder, forms database, itemsets database)
- Form load cache (.cache folder)



(a) Admin settings

(b) Reset application

(c) Select reset options

Figure B.2: ODK Collect reset application steps

B.0.3 Connect ODK Collect to the KoboToolbox server

- 1. Go to *General Settings* of ODK Collect (Figure B.3a).
- 2. Select *Server* option (Figure B.3b).

😇 💎 🖹 💆 10:27	👼 🔷 🔍 🖬 1	0:27 💆 🔍 🔽 10:27
Main Mer About	General Settings	Server Settings
ODK Col General Settings Data collect Admin Settings	Server	Type ODK Aggregate
Fill Blank Form	Maps	ODK Aggregate settings URL
Edit Saved Form	E Form management	https://opendatakit.appspot.com
Send Finalized Form	• User and device identity	Password
View Sent Form		
Get Blank Form		
Delete Saved Form		
(a) General settings	(b) Server settings	(c) Server settings options

Figure B.3: ODK Collect server settings menu

- 3. Enter URL for the KoboToolbox server (Figure B.4a). This should be set to https://kc-eu.kobotoolbox.org.
- 4. Enter username for the KoboToolbox server account (Figure B.4b). This should be set to ihtmbot.
- 5. Enter password for the KoboToolbox server account (Figure B.4c). Password will be provided separately on an email.

🖻 💎 🖹 💆 10:28									👼 💎 📉 🖬 10:28									👼 💎 🖹 🖬 10:28										
Server Settings										Server Settings									Server Settings									
T Server URL										T ODK Username									T ODK Password									
o ^t	c ttps://kc-eu.kobotoolbox.org ▼										o ihtmbot								c									
U H CANCEL OK										H CANCEL OK							u h CANCEL OK								k			
Username								Username							Username ihtmbot													
88	;)	G	IF	Ē	1	¢	•	Ų	🔠 ihtmbot ihtm it ihtm or 🎐								! @ # \$ % ^ & * ()											
Q ¹	N ²	E [®] F	۲4	Г ⁵ С	۲	U ⁷	ľ	D° P°	$\begin{bmatrix} \mathbf{Q}^1 & \mathbf{W}^2 & \mathbf{E}^3 & \mathbf{R}^4 & \mathbf{T}^5 & \mathbf{Y}^6 & \mathbf{U}^7 & \mathbf{I}^8 & \mathbf{O}^9 & \mathbf{P}^0 \end{bmatrix}$						QWERTYUIO							P						
Α	S	D	F	G	Н	J	κ	L	Α	S	D	F	G	Н	J	К	L	A	S	D	F	G	Н	J	κ	L		
	Z	X	С	V	В	Ν	Μ	$\overline{\times}$		z	X	С	V	В	N	Μ	$\left(\times\right)$		z	X	С	V	В	Ν	М	$\langle \times \rangle$		
?123	,	٢					·		?123	,	٢					·		?123	,						•			
	∇	,		0						∇			0						∇	7		0						
(a) URL										(b) Username							(c) Password											

Figure B.4: ODK Collect server settings

The ODK Collect server settings has now been set/updated (Figure B.5)



Figure B.5: Server settings set/updated

B.0.4 Get blank forms

1. In the main ODK Collect menu, select *Get Blank Form* (Figure B.6a). ODK Collect will connect to the KoboToolbox server (Figure B.6b).



Figure B.6: ODK Collect retrieving selected blank forms

2. Select the blank forms to retrieve and tap *Get Selected* (Figure B.7a). ODK Collect will retrieve the selected forms from the server (Figure B.7b).



Figure B.7: ODK Collect retrieving selected blank forms

B.0.5 Filling blank forms

- 1. In the main ODK Collect menu, select *Fill Blank Form* (Figure B.8).
- 2. Select blank form to fill (Figure B.8b).



(a) Fill blank form option

(b) Select blank form to fill

Figure B.8: ODK Collect filling selected blank form

Index

Agency for Healthcare Research and Quality, 11 Android, 26 APK, 39

Bluetooth, 31

cancer, 6 Cancer Awareness Measure, 11 Cancer Awareness Measure Plus, 11 Cancer Research UK, 11 Chemotherapy Day Unit, 6 Consumer Assessment of Healthcare Providers and Systems, 11 COVID-19, 6

European Society of Medical Oncology, 7

IAEA imPACT review, 7 Institut National du Cancer, 11 Institute of Medicine, 8, 10

IOM, 10

key performance indicators, 6

landscape analysis, 6 Le Baromètre cancer, 10

National Comprehensive Cancer Network, 7 National Health Strategic Plan, 7 non-communicable diseases, 9

Oncology Unit, 6

Samsung, 26 Santé publique France, 11 Seychelles National Cancer Registry, 6 sideload, 39 Strategic Framework for Quality Management, 7 SwiftKey, 39

World Health Organization, 7